Town of Colchester, Connecticut

127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415

Mary Bylone, First Selectman

Board of Selectman Agenda
Regular Meeting via Zoom
Thursday, March 4, 2021 @ 7:00 PM
(ALL ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE SUBJECT TO POSSIBLE ACTION)
Please use the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/1/82944725113?pwd=7ZGU4biErRHZEQWNuRIphRnFxMmJLZz09
Or Telephone:
US: +1 929 205 6099 or+1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 669 900 6833
or+1253 2158782 or +1 346 248 7799
Webinar ID: 829 4472 5113
Passcode: 368970

1. CALL TOORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ADDITIONS AND/OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA
4. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS
5
6

01:2 Hd €- ¥¥H 1202

CORRESPONDENCE:
CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approve the Minutes of the February 18, 2021 Board of Selectmen Meeting

B. Tax Abatements

~J

. Boards and Commission — Interviews and/or Possible Appointment and Resignations
A. Commission on Aging - Interview of Rosanne Tousignant for a possible full member appointment with
a term to expire 12/1/2021
B. Commission on Aging - Interview of Nola Weston for a possible alternate position with a term to expire
on 12/31/2022
8. Assessor John Chaponis follow up from Board of Selectman Meeting February 18, 2021 Grand List Discussion
9. C-PACE
10. Lebanon Street Scape Design Consultant Services
1 1. Memorial Day Parade
12. Purchase of Ambulance
13. Executive Session:
A. To Discuss Strategy with Respect to a Pending Claim Pertaining to an Employment [ssue.

B. To Discuss a Possible Land Purchase for Open Space

Selectman(@ColchesterCt.gov 860-537-7220 www.ColchesterCT.gov




14. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS

15. FIRST SELECTMAN’S REPORT
16. LIAISON REPORTS

17. ADJOURN

Selectman(@ColchesterCt.gov

860-537-7220

www.ColchesterCT.gov




Town of Colchester, Connecticut

127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415

Mary Bylone, First Selectman

Board of Selectman Minutes
Regular Meeting via Zoom
Thursday, February 18, 2021 @ 7:00 PM
Members Present: First Selectiman Mary Bylone, Selectmen Rosemary Coyle, Denise Turner,
Denise Mizla and Taras Rudko
1. CALL TO ORDER: First Selectiman called the meeting to order at 7 P.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ADDITIONS AND/OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA: NONE
4. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS: Linda Pasternak stated that she was in favor of Board members having their
cameras on for Zoom meetings. Sal Tassone made sure the Board knew he was present for questions relating to
the Canier Road agenda item.
5. CORRESPONDENCE: NONE

6. CONSENT AGENDA

\
#

A. Approve the Minutes of the February 4, 2021 Board of Selectmen Meeting  z:
B. Tax Abatements

~a
=2
=~
o
[=v]
™o
[
=
=
[o1]

C. Resignation of Jean Walsh from Econoemic Development Commission
T. Rudko motioned to approve the consent agenda, seconded by R. Coyle. MOTION CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY

7. Presentation by Chatham Health District Director Russell Melmed on the allocation of 20% of Colchester’s
CRF funds: R. Coyle motioned to allocate the 20% of Colchester’s CRF funds in the amount of $25,350.80 to
Chatham Health District, seconded by D. Turner. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

8. Tax Assessor John Chaponis to Discuss the Grand List: J. Chaponis answered questions concerning his memo
dated January 29, 2021 regarding the Grand List.

9. Town Planner Matt Bordeaux to Discuss Ad Hoc Committee to Research Using Town Funds to Support Efforts
to Secure Both Conservation and Agricultural Easements: Board of Selectmen reached consensus that the
Planning and Zoning Department explore what options currently exist before the Ad Hoc Comimittee convenes
or is charged.

10. Approve Construction of a Residential Driveway within the Town Right-of-Way of Carrier Road: R. Coyle
motioned to approve construction of a residential driveway within the Town Right-of-Way of Carrier Road with
the understanding that the driveway will not be maintained by the Town of Colchester and pending approval by

Town Code Administration and Planning & Zoning staff. The Town of Colchester has no intention, at this time,
Selectman({@ColchesterCl.pov 860-537-7220 www,ColchesterCT.gov




11

12.

13.

14.

15.

to resume maintenance of the abandoned portion of Cairier Road, seconded by D. Mizla. MOTION CARRIED
4-0-1, with T. Rudko abstaining.

Apptove Social Services Program Coordinator Job Description: D. Mizla motioned to approve the Social
Services Program Coordinator job description, seconded bye D. Turner. MOTION CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY

Establish Process for Fire Chief Search: First Selectman will invite representatives from two different firms that
assist municipalities with hiring Fire Chiefs to upcoming Board of Selectmen meetings to explain what they
offer. Additionally, a representative from a municipality that recently went through the process of hiring a fire
chief will be invited to an upcoming board meeting to discuss how they went about their process.

CITIZEN’S COMMENTS: Cathy Russi stated that she was in favor of Board of Selectmen members having
their cameras on for Zoom meetings. T. Rudko responded that he was not in favor of having his camera on as hg
attends from him home office and stated that all things in public meetings are FOl-able. Linda Pasternak stated
that there are simulated backgrounds that can be used in Zoom.

FIRST SELECTMAN’S REPORT: Seniot Center will be offering upcoming COVID vaccine clinics. The
positivity rate for COVID in the state is at 2.02%. Budget goals are being worked on. At the next BOF meeting
the Police Department is doing a presentation about vehicles and staffing needs. Novus will present on [T needs
including phone system at the following Board of Finance. The price of salt will be going up, if we get more
snow we may have to purchase salt at the higher price. FOI requests were received from Joseph Cahill, Josh
Keily and Art Shilosky

LIAISON REPORTS:

R. Coyle: Commission on Aging - Senior Center Director’s Report Attached. Commission used the money in
their budget to print the Senior Resource Guide.

Open Space Commission — They are working with UCONN to possibly develop a wildlife management plan.
The Town has applied for two brownfield grants to do contamination assessments.

Senior Center Building Committee ~ Plan to move the referendum date to Septemnber to allow more time for the
public information campaign.

Long Term Recovery Committee — Working on implementation of goals including intergenerational activities.
D. Tumner: Conservation Commission — They had one pending application, one new application and the
enforcement issue at Middletown Road has been resolved.

D. Mizla — Norton Park Committee — Director of Public Works Jim Paggioli gave an update and discussed
going out to bid for remediation and restoration to get the property back to grass. The closing for 129
Westchester Road happened and the demolition of that house along with another property will go out to bid.
There will be a presentation on February 25 with help from the Library as well as another one on March 25.
They have raised $7,796 in general donations and over $11,000 for engraved park items.

T. Rudko: Ethics Commission — They are reviewing draft revisions to the Ethics Code.

Selectman(@ColchesterCl.pov 860-537-7220 www.ColchesterC'l.gov




16.

Planning and Zoning Commission - Two additional submissions made and a conversation regarding solar, both
commercial and residential.

FS: Economic Development Commission — Working on the C-TIP application

Police Commission - Preparing for BOF presentation. Working on Blood Borne Pathogen Policy, and mandates
from Governor’s Executive Order regarding body worn cameras, dash cameras and training.
ADJOURN: T. Rudko motioned to adjourn at 8:50 p.m., seconded by D. Mizla. MOTION
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Please see the minutes of future meetings for any corrections hereto.

Respectfully Submitted by:

ot T —

e —_—

Heide Perham, Executive Assistant to the First Selectman

Selectman@ColchesterCrpoy 860-537-7220 www.ColchesterC J.gov




Town of Colchester, Connecticut

127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415

BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
APPLICATION
Name: [N o 54/ Al oug; g wA2l]”
Address_ /OR A /D]amd Duje Colchester, CT. 06415
Home Phone: . _;/ A Email__Reaf/y & y 4/ L, Cot/ FAX: /Z//ﬁ—
Cell Phone; KQC) T L )Lé/- IRY Town Residency \SM Years
Party Affiliation: Democrat Republican X Unaffiliated {check one)

Commission or Board you are interested in serving on: Kn/z,,m,; Lol (OAL Ag Let

Educational Background: List name and location of school, # of years attended, Subjects/Major, Did you graduate?

High School:__ 7. Mickael +  Hia / Sedoad

A7 /i me;?[_f L1 )/. 7/}/ ’/ 9{ _/ ﬁ,ffm o, 7f_ .y
1 968 - Thevpsoy Sthal oF Beaclicse. Aoesivg =~ Lpa) Leeos e
College: ]9 £ - Privewss o, oA i0e Avles i g e = Rouljcecsy
) G 70s- qy;afr g Lie A-zlj (.T.’é.//e{(j,e ; 5.8 4+ 0.8 el
Fumag  Stepprice < . Sooptiap Loeld /,-‘?/fMC/raﬁf/t;,af
' 7 i 7
L H .
Trade,Bussiness I c/g (7 -/ (/ 7 AN Ale d’ N/l | S\{" L g < o
Or Correspondence B —
Scheol The [las] [ 5{7 < 7’;] 7_:, o Apu ;‘
y

02-16-21P07:14 RCYD

CONTINUED ON REVERSE SIDE




Work Experience: List length of employment, name and address of employer, position & reason for leaving:

7’/ 45:714 cg\em—f? braick é’/l’yp C N flrd & w/
/967 /Um{f" J/jrs ‘/'.fu Al r/e ﬂ/l&{/ﬁw o of Aciie (/W&/Zef;: e Cieze

19¢S N J r

. é@(‘)’fﬂ - f/P,/w g,f)f' fﬁf’- Ay /1.4/1 iy

1757 ek ,}42./ P 4 /M/u//ma Y. V’ufz'/' jots . e JA en A it i Ataf)
R4 [ipte ] Aneia s fnalion _of Lut«a T 422y 44// fisr.;/e;/i fuisp, The Lays )~ 2 SZI 7

0 AMS of WURAL - ’Cféw/ls 2eS oot s ble Lo T wele z_ < 77
(O perativus C“gf;c‘m \ e & e -Crei e A8 The Ch ,é‘(
Are you capable of making the commitment of time necessary to serve on this Board or Commission? é ; )

Why are yeu interested in servmg" o { ¢z (A at-,z,yé% HUZ Lptizo /
ﬁ H
Clop g one /rs'-»z_q B, L/U) }‘7/\ AL 28 c_..)aé_‘, . J/U/]’7L/ 4(/ ww‘.._«(*’wa

//ijifrh f;'/.é ‘éﬁw/* oty /A/Z;m//% cb’l et ///:4/// %L!‘-ﬂ’?"

Ez Ej./ 0’»’("40 AA)/.'/(,/\-I?.-/'( Pals ¥ /.’;Vl [ é/t)“’ﬂ A T

’I/‘?'" /L.ﬁ-é}rj/t/l;%’ f% lw-f/MQ’ tn T»,giﬁ /1"7/F < V

v

Do you have any experience or familiarity with this area? ¢ ,.L@:d Qx‘f / s, / v (_.1 _

j‘f»—r’ // ﬂ'rf’«/\-! M/KA[) e f///f 2- M.C"PLJUZ L/b(— ,‘ / n,—ur/f/ /x
oA M (-Zp / 02;?/ c\/w/oa-;(jlw-a{,, —Zf-é M.L ( o"W;\,

i

ENA, ﬁ? At

J 0

If you are not appointed to this board or commission, would you be interested in other forms of publie service?

Which ones? /«Ju— . /X ‘C%—; o ) ey 0// d 'g’l_&mﬂé Crzane., o

- /7 b ~
lex./L/?‘,k-”-'_/Z(_ﬂ' rL C orptreg /m,.._,-«_ (_,W,../ Epn 5 mef,,‘/w/\ A // [ ;/

e%gm,’e/ | mat (C /H”Lz/ e Cé /&f/lﬂt/g -
/) "f‘“'""'“""‘”"

- ‘ . (’/ ~
Date: ;1 - / ,K N Q\ / Signature: / ";a»-'r:u:“.--a—mft_.{-“i.----"' L/ i AR i, \z/
N L= /, =]




Town of Colchester, Connecticut

127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415

DATE. 2 =/ lr- ROR/

BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
APPLICATION
wame: Aol UNlTo
address:_ 03 Jalla st A Colchester, CT. 06415
Home Phone:__— Email_/)0/a ) b8 ¢ g NG 1L LoarFAX:
Cell Phone; F 07 -2 -1 90T Town Residency_____J_ Years
Party Affiliationt mocrat Republican | /] Unaffiliated  (check one)

Commtission or Board you are interested in serving on: 0 AN VYLIPIL LA o %

Educational Background: List name and location of school, # of years atiended, Subjects/Major, Did you graduate?

High School:__(4%7 }’&M /&5}/»;/&/%4? , Lo MW:Z

@,A-bl,cgaaﬂze;o
%W /903

College: M&u{/ ety 2o /J &/UW"/ 7 %Mwh” K 196 & |
T 710l Ars iz e, wholiviZle IR a.@-gf Braintas 1785
piglictd Ciilige, spters fait dllasdielic W) IS 197/

Trade, Bussiness
Or Correspondence
School

I TA=PAPOR 14 ROYD

CONTINUED ON REVERSE SIDE




‘Work Experience: Lisi length of employment, name and address of employer, position & reason for Jeaving:

Wane Yeladns Knre . Aescetads WE C.00

WIEN I~ Lt pnd I7E° Loote e dTprt
N pssz Lo at i bate M,uﬂ‘ e A[Z//Lz/ ééu,wm
Aerg et 004 Jtpr: Care, [Grigutis 1/ 24 /,sso'

RAANLL L luuu-‘-j X . L INA 7L 4 D,
Vorisees> Caede Buoan @%ZALW&JM% ,;;oyWﬁQW;f Z?%%

Are you capable of making the commitment of time necessary to serve on this Board or Commission?

Why are you interested in serving? ,@[ﬁcﬂ-& S el W’-"’%M% J&MI @'«M’
(et d Sibres 7 fo aignn Qork F Al bbb specnitl), Ynoe

WﬂW(/ wmwm%w% bare Judyeyzir Crie 4 pech
Maos AT et Wy &/M%AZW{ AL Deon i te,
Zeore, LoSommiadin,. J izl

AQJQA/A#;&&M .
/WEMM Ll a2 dd L2 ) mgmf&%gd____

Po you have any experience or familiarity with this area? ‘g/ ‘fuw.a/ W LA WL&’M&.

22 /‘//M /Mm%a /;aiu JMM%M%W Pl
e twite, dlroslofpodpbiitalin WWM@@ o Mww
WWWQ«M Z ﬁmqu@ao %MZM@ M
pU s, MW%%&MW%W% /w%wzo%wé 2y,
auy wwﬂ&m/ s e ﬂWm
W 2y ///MM /MWW

¥f you are not appointed {o this board or commission, would you be intevested in other forms of public service?

Which ones? %() Z

Signature: 7%&/ Mm

Date: F~/ () R O3/




Commission on Aging-7 Members, 2 Alternates, 3 year terms

Position Name Party Phone E-maif Expiration Date
Chair Marjorie Mlodzinski U 860-603-2047  msrmlodzinski@gmail.com 12/1/2021
Vice Chair Nan Wasniewski R 860-531-9622 newskinoll@gmail.com 12/31/2021
Member Roberta J. Avery R 860-608-4628  roberta.avery@snet.net 12/1/2023
Member Geraldine Transue D 860-608-9824  gkwerl945@gmail.com 12/1/2023
Member Linda Pasternak U 860-303-6143  Ipasternak@sbcglobal.net 12/31/2022
Member Sandra Gaetano D 860-537-6120 sgaetanoll@gmail.com 12/1/2023
Member VACANT 12/1/2021
Alternate VACANT 12/31/2022
Alternate VACANT 12/31/2022

We post agendas & minutes



TOWN OF COLCHESTER
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT

TO: Board of Selectmen

FROM: Matthew Bordeaux, Planning Director /{27
DATE: February 26, 2021

RE: Connecticut Green Bank’s C-PACE Program

The Connecticut Green Bank’s C-PACE Program, which stands for Connecticut Property
Assessed Clean Energy, is a financing tool that makes energy efficiency upgrades more
accessible and affordable for a variety of new and existing commercial, industrial, non-profit and
multi-family building owners. With C-PACE, building owners can finance energy upgrades
immediately and pay for them over time through a voluntary benefit assessment lien, levied and
recorded against the benefitting property, to be repaid with the collection of real property taxes.

The program is established in Connecticut General Statute 16a-40g and is administered by the
Connecticut Green Bank, a quasi-public agency. Connecticut passed the enabling policy in June
0f 2012, and there are currently 135 municipalities that have passed resolutions to join the
program. The Connecticut Green Bank designed the program to attract low cost capital into the
state for the purpose of energy upgrades in buildings. In this way, C-PACE is an economic
development tool, as building upgrades that lower energy costs create a more competitive
environment for attracting and retaining businesses.

The first step before property owners can take advantage of the program is for the legislative
body of the town to pass a resolution, enabling the First Selectman to sign a legal agreement with
the Green Bank. Once this agreement is signed, building owners throughout Colchester will be
eligible for 100% upfront and low-interest financing on eligible energy efficiency and renewable
energy projects. While terms vary from project to project, repayment terms range from 5 and 25
years, and the interest rates may be between 5% and 6.5%.

Attached you will find: (1) the C-PACE enabling legislation from CGS 16a-40g; (2) a draft legal
agreement between the Town of Colchester and the Connecticut Green Bank; and (3) the draft
resolution enabling the Town to enter into the program.

Connecticut Green Bank program administrators reached out to the Town of Colchester because
there is a local business interested in installing solar panels on their building using financing
from this program.

C-PACE would improve Colchester’s continuing effort to be a better place to do business and
build a stronger and healthier community for all. C-PACE can be an additional option in
Colchester’s economic development toolbelt to help our local businesses save money with lower



and more predictable energy bills, encouraging building owners to invest in place, rather than
considering relocation.

Proposed Motion:

Move to recommend to the legislative body of the Town of Colchester, the Town Meeting, the
adoption of a resolution to approve the Connecticut Green Bank’s Connecticut Property
Assessed Clean Energy (C-PACE) Program Agreement and authorize the First Selectman fo
execute and deliver the C-PACE Agreement, A Town Meeting shall be held March 18, 2021 fo
vote on the resolution,

MRB

Ri\Misceilanzous\C-PACEMeng 10 BOS docx




Last updated.: October 1, 2017

C.G.S.A. § 16a-40g Comumercial sustainable energy program

(1) "Energy improvements" means (A) participation in a district heating and cooling
system by qualifying commercial real property, (B) participation in a microgrid, as defined in
section 16-243y, including any related infrastructure for such microgrid, by qualifying
commercial real property, provided such microgrid and any related infrastructure incorporate
clean energy, as defined in section 16-245n, (C) any improvement, renovation or retrofitting of
qualifying commercial real property to reduce encrgy consumption or improve energy efficiency,
(D) installation of a renewable energy system to service qualifying commercial real property, or
(E) installation of a solar thermal or geothermal system to service qualifying commercial real
property, provided such renovation, retrofit or installation described in subparagraph (C), (D) or
(E) of this subdivision is permanently fixed to such qualifying commercial real property;

(2) "District heating and cooling system" means a local system consisting of a pipeline or
network providing hot water, chilled water or steam from one or more sources to multiple
buildings;

(3) "Qualifying commercial real properly" means any commercial or industrial property,
regardless of ownership, that meets the qualifications established for the commercial sustainable
energy program;

(4) "Commercial or industrial property" means any real property other than a residential
dwelling containing less than five dwelling units;

(5) "Benefited property owner” means an owner of qualifying commercial real property
who desires to install energy improvements and provides free and willing consent to the benefit
assessment against the qualifying commercial real property,

(6) "Commercial sustainable energy program" means a program that facilitates energy
improvements and utilizes the benefit assessments authorized by this section as security for the
financing of the energy improvements;

{(7) "Municipality" means a municipality, as defined in section 7-369;

(8) "Benefit assessment” means he assessment anthorized by this section;

{9) "Participating municipality” means a municipality that has entered into a written
agreement, as approved by its legislative body, with the bank pursuant to which the municipality
has agreed to assess, collect, remit and assign, benefit assessments to the bank in retwrn for
energy improvements for benefited property owners within such municipality and costs

reasonably incurred in performing such duties;

(10) "Bank" means the Connecticut Green Bank; and



(11) "Third-party capital provider” means an entity, other than the bank, that provides
financing, leases or power purchase agreements directly to benefited property owners for energy
improvements,

(b) (1) The bank shall establish a commercial sustainable energy program in the state, and
in furtherance thereof, is authorized to make appropriations for and issue bonds, notes or other
obligations for the purpose of financing, (A) energy improvements; (B) related energy audits; (C)
renewable energy system feasibility studies; and (ID) verification reports of the installation and
effectiveness of such improvements, The bonds, notes or other obligations shall be issued in
accordance with legislation authorizing the bank to issue bonds, notes or other obligations
generally. Such bonds, notes or other obligations may be secured as to both principal and interest
by a pledge of revenues to be derived from the commercial sustainable energy program,
inchuding revenues from benefit assessments on qualifying commercial real property, as
authorized in this section.

(2) When the bank has made appropriations for energy improvements for qualifying
commercial real property or other costs of the commercial sustainable energy program, including
interest costs and other costs related to the issuance of bonds, notes or other obligations to
finance the appropriation, the bank may require the participating municipality in which the
qualifying commercial real property is located to levy a benefit assessment against the qualifying
commercial real property especially benefited thereby.

(3) The bank (A) shall develop program guidelines governing the terms and conditions
under which state and third-party financing may be made available to the commercial sustainable
energy program, including, in consultation with representatives from the banking industry,
municipalities and property owners, developing the parameters for consent by existing mortgage
holders and may serve as an aggregating entity for the purpose of securing state or private third-
party financing for energy improvements pursuant to this section, (B) shall establish the position
of commercial sustainable cnergy program liaison within the bank, (C) may establish a loan loss
reserve or other credit enhancement program for qualifying commetcial real property, (D) may
use the services of one or more private, public or quasi-public third-party administrators to
administer, provide support or obtain financing for the commeicial sustainable energy program,
(E) shall adopt standards to ensure that the energy cost savings of the energy improvements over
the useful life of such improvements exceed the costs of such improvements, and (F) may
encourage third-party capital providers to provide financing, leases and power purchase
agreements directly to benefited property owners in licu of or in addition to the bank providing
such loans.

(¢) Before establishing a commercial sustainable energy program under this section, the
bank shall provide notice to the electric distribution company, as defined in section 16-1, that
services the participating municipality,

(d) If a benefited property owner requests financing from the bank or a third-party capital
provider for energy improvements under this section, the bank shall:



(1) Require performance of an energy audit or renewable energy system feasibility analysis
on the qualifying commercial real property that assesses the expected energy cost savings of the
energy improvements over the useful life of such improvements before approving such
financing;

(2) If financing is approved, either by the bauk or the third-party capital provider, require
the participating nmnicipality to levy a benefit assessment on the qualifying commercial real
property with the property owner in a principal amount sufficient to pay the costs of the energy
improvements and any associated costs the bank or the third-party capital provider determines
will benefit the qualifying commercial real property;

(3) Impose requirements and criteria to ensure that the proposed cnergy improvements are
consistent with the purpose of the commercial sustainable energy program;

(4} Impose requirements and conditions on the financing to ensure timely repayment,
including, but not limited to, procedures for placing a benefit assessment lien on a property as
security for the repayment of the benefit assessment; and

(5) Require that the property owner provide written notice, not less than thirty days prior to
the recording of any benefit assessment lien securing a benefit assessment for energy
improvements for such property, to any existing mortgage holder of such property, of the
property owner's intent to finance such energy improvements pursuant to this section.

(e) (1) The bank or the third-parly capital provider may enter into a financing agreement
with the property owner of qualifying commercial real property. After such agreement is entered
into, and upon notice from the bank, the participating municipality shall (A) place a caveat on the
land records indicating that a benefit assessment and a benefit asscssment lien are anticipated
upon completion of energy improvements for such property, or (B) at the direction of the bank,
levy the benefit assessment and file a benefit assessment lien on the land records based on the
estimated costs of the energy improvements prior to the completion or upon the completion of
such improvements.

(2) The bank or the third-party capital provider shall disclose to the property owner the
costs and risks associated with participating in the commercial sustainable energy program
established by this section, including risks related to the failure of the property owner to pay the
benefil assessment, The bank or the third-party capital provider shall disclose to the property
owner the effective interest rate of the benefit assessment, including fees charged by the bank or
the third-party capital provider to administer the program, and the risks associated with variable
interest rate financing. The bank or the third-party capital provider shall notify the property
owner that such owner may rescind any financing agreement entered into pursuant to this section
not later than three business days after such agreement,

(f) The bank or the third-party capital provider shall set a fixed or variable rate of interest
for the repayment of the benefit assessment amount at the time the benefit assessment is made.
Such interest rate, as may be supplemented with state or federal funding as may become



available, shall be sufficient to pay the bank's financing and administrative costs of the
commercial sustainable energy program, including delinquencies.

(g) Benefit assessments levied and filed pursuant to this section and the interest, fees and
any penalties thereon shall constitute a lien against the qualifying comercial real property on
which they are made until they are paid. Such benefit assessment lien, shall be paid in
installments and each installment payment shall be collected in the same manner as the property
taxes of the participating municipality on real property, including, in the event of default or
delinquency, with respect to any penalties, fees and remedies. Each such benefit agsessment lien
may be recorded and released in the manner provided for property tax liens and shall take
precedence over all other liens or encumbrances except a len for taxes of the municipality on
real property, which lien for taxes shall have priority over such benefit assessment lien, and
provided that the precedence of such benefit assessment lien over any lien held by an existing
mortgage holder shall be subject to the written consent of such existing mortgage holder. To the
extent any benefit assessment lien installment is not paid when due, the benefit assessment lien
may be foreclosed to the extent of any unpaid installment payments due and owing and any
penalties, interest and fees related thereto. In the event a benefit assessment lien is foreclosed or
a lien for taxes of the municipality on real property is foreclosed or enforced by levy and sale in
accordance with chapter 204, the benefit assessment lien shall be extinguished solely with regard
to any installments that were due and owing on the date of the judgment of such fotreclosure or
levy and sale and the benefit assessment lien shall olherwise survive such judgment or levy and
sale to the extent of any unpaid installment payments of the benefit assessment secured by such
benefit assessment lien that are due after the date of such judgment or levy and sale.

(h) Any participating municipality may assign to the bank any and all benefit assessment
liens filed by the participating municipality, as provided in the written agreement between the
participating municipality and the bank. The bank may sell or assign, for consideration, any and
all benefit assessment liens received from the participating municipality. The consideration
received by the bank shall be negotiated between the bank and the assignee. The assignee or
assignees of such benefit assessment liens shall have and possess the same powers and rights at
faw or in equity as the bank and the participating municipality and its tax collector would have
had if the benefit assessment lien had not been assigned with regard to the precedence and
priority of such benefit assessment lien, the accrual of interest and the fees and expenses of
collection. The assignee shall have the same rights to enforce such benefit assessment liens as
any private party holding a lien on real property, including, but not limited to, foreclosure and a
suit on the debt. Costs and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by the assignee as a result of any
foreclosure action or other legal proceeding brought pursuant to this section and directly related
Lo the proceeding shall be taxed in any such proceeding against each person having title to any
property subject to the proceedings. Such costs and fees may be collected by the assignee at any
time after demand for payment has been made by the assignee.



APPROVING RESQLUTION

TOWN OF COLCHESTER
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY (“C-PACE”)
AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Section 16a-40g, as amended, of the Connecticut General
Statutes (the “Act™) established a program, known as the Commercial Property Assessed
Clean Energy (C-PACE) program, to facilitate loan financing for clean energy
improvements to commercial properties by utilizing a state or local assessment mechanism
to provide security for repayment of the loans; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the Connecticut Green Bank (the “Green
Bank™), a public instrumentality and political subdivision of the State charged with
implementing the C-PACE program on behalf of the State, to enter info a wrilten
agreement with participating municipalities pursuant to which the municipality may agree
to assess, collect, remitl and assign, benefit assessments to the Green Bank in return for
energy improvements for benefited property owners within the municipality and for costs
reasonably incurred by the municipality in performing such duties; and

WHEREAS, the Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (*C-
PACE”) Agreement (the “C-PACE Agreement”) between the Town of COLCHESTER
and the Green Bank, as attached hereto, constitutes the writien agreement authorized by the
Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE I'T RESOLVIED:

(a) that we, the Board of Selectmen, constituting the legislative body of
the Town of COLCHESTER, hereby approve the C-PACE Agreenient, and

(b)  that First Selectman is hereby authorized and directed, on behalf of
the Town, to execute and deliver the C-PACE Agreement, substantially in the form
attached to this Resolution, for the purposes provided therein, together with such other
documents as he or she may determine to be necessary and appropriate to evidence, secure
and otherwise complete the C-PACE Agreement.



COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ASSESSED
CLEAN ENERGY (“C-PACE”) AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the  day of , 2021, by and
between the TOWN OF COLCHESTER, CONNECTICUT, a municipal corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Connecticut (the “Municipality”), and the CONNECTICUT
GREEN BANK, a quasi-public agency of the State of Connecticut, having its business address at 845
Brook Street, Rocky Hill, Connecticut 06067 (the “Green Bank”),

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Conunercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (“C-PACE”) is a program to facilitate
loan financing for clean energy improvements to comumercial properties by utilizing a state or local
assessment mechanism lo provide security for repayment of the loans.

WHEREAS, section 16a-40g, as amended, of the Connecticut General Statutes (the “Act”)
established the C-PACE program in Connecticut.

WHEREAS, subsection (b)(1) of the Act directs the Green Bank to establish a commercial
sustainable energy program, and authorized the Green Bank to make appropriations for and issue bonds,
notes or other obligations to finance the program costs. A commercial sustainable energy program is a
program that facilitates energy improvements to commercial or industrial property and utilizes municipal
benefit assessments authorized by the Act as security for financing the energy improvements,

WHEREAS, to secure financing for the program, the Green Bank and the Municipality are
authorized to enter into a written agreement, as approved by the Municipality’s legislative body, pursuant
to which the Municipality has agreed to assess, collect, remit and assign, benefit assessments to the Green
Bank in return for energy improvements for benefited property owners within the Municipality and for
costs reasonably incurred by the Municipality in performing such duties.

WHEREAS, this Agreement constitutes the written agreement authorized by the Act.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth
herein and in order to effectuate the purposes of the Act, it is hereby agreed as follows:

Section 1 - Definitions.

(a) "Energy improvements" means (A) participation in a district heating and cooling system by
qualifying commercial real property, (B) participation in a microgrid, as defined in section 16-
243y, including any related infrastructure for such microgrid, by qualifying commercial real
property, provided such microgrid and any related infrastructure incorporate clean energy, as
defined in section 16-245n, as amended by this ac(, (C) any renovation or retrofitting of qualifying
commercial real property to reduce energy consumption, (D) installation of a renewable energy
system to service qualifying commercial real property, or (E) installation of a solar thermal or
geothermal system to service qualifying commercial real property, provided such renovation,
retrofit or installation described in subparagraph (C), (D) or (E) of this subdivision is permanently
fixed to such qualifying commercial real property.

V082515



(b)

(c)

(d)

(¢)

®

(g)

"District heating and cooling system" means a local system consisting of a pipeline or network
providing hot water, chilled water or steam from one or more sources to multiple buildings.

“Qualifying commercial real property” means any commercial or industrial property, regardless
of ownership, that meets the qualifications established for the commercial sustainable energy
prograin.

“Comunercial or industrial property” means any real property other than a residential dwelling
containing less than five dwelling umits.

“Benefited property owner” means an owner of qualifying commercial real property who desires
to install energy improvements and provides free and willing consent to the benefit assessment
against the gualifying commercial real property.

“Commercial sustainable energy program™ mcans a program that facilitates energy
improvements and utilizes the benefit assessments authorized by this Agreement as security for

the financing of the energy improvements,

“Benefit assessment” means the assessment authorized by the Act.

Section 2 - Obligations of the Green Bank.

(2)

Program Requirements. Pursuant to the Act, the Green Bank:

(1) Shall develop program guidelines governing the terms and conditions under
which state financing may be made available to the commercial sustainable energy program,
including, in consultation with representatives from the banking industry, municipalities and
property owners, developing the parameters for consent by existing mortgage holders and may
serve as an aggregating entity for the purpose of securing state or private third-party financing
for energy improvements pursuant to the Act;

(2)  Shall receive and review applications submitted by benefitted property owners
within the Municipality for financing of energy improvements, and approve or disapprove such
applications in accordance with underwriting procedures and requirements established by the
Green Bank;

(3)  Shall prepare and deliver to the Municipality an annual report which shall contain
information related to each qualifying commercial real property within the Municipality,
including:

i. A list of each qualifying commercial real property for which the benefitted property
owner execuled 4 financing agreement during the prior year,

ii. A list of each qualifying commercial real property where all obligations under
the financing agreement have been satisfied or paid in full during the prior
year, including the satisfaction date and a copy of the notice of satisfaction;

iii. The total benefit assessment payments made to the Green Bank in respect of
all qualilying commercial real properties; and

V082515 -9



(b)

(©)

iv. For each non-satisfied (not paid in full) benefit assessment (including each
benefit assessment approved in the prior year):

A. The date of the financing agreement;

The outstanding amount of the financing;

0w

The total principal balance and accrued interest outstanding; and

=

The annual payment(s) due to the Green Bank (which shall include
principal and accrued interest) associated with such benefit assessment
(including the amount of accrued interest on the initial payment, if
different).

4) Shall establish the position of commercial sustainable energy program liaison
within the Green Bank;

(5)  Shall establish a loan loss reserve or other credit enhancement program for
qualifying commercial real property;

{6)  May use the services of one or more private, public or quasi-public third-party
administrators to administer, provide support or obtain financing for the commercial sustainable

energy program; and

(7) Shall adopt standards to ensure that the energy cost savings of the energy
improvements over the useful life of such improvements exceed the costs of such improvements.

Project Requirements. If a benefitted property owner requests financing from the Green Bank for

energy improvements under the Act, the Green Bank shall:

4] Require performance of an energy audit or renewable energy system feasibility
analysis on the qualifying commercial real property that assesses the expected energy cost savings
of the energy improvements over the useful life of such improvements before approving such
financing;

(2)  Impose requirements and criteria to ensure that the proposed energy improvements
are consistent with the purpose of the commercial sustainable energy program; and

(3)  Require that the properly owner obtain the consent of any existing mortgage holder
of such property, prior to the exccution of the financing agrcement or the recording of any lien
securing a benefit assessment for energy improvements for such property, to have a Benefit
Assessment Lien levied on the property to finance such energy improvements pursuant to the Act.

Financing Agreement for Project. The Green Bank may enter into a financing agreement with the
property owner of qualifying commercial rveal property (the “Financing Agreement”). The
Financing Agreement shall clearly state the estimated benefit assessment that will be levied against
the qualifying commercial real property. The Green Bank shall disclose to the property owner the
costs and risks associated with participating in the commercial sustainable energy program,
including risks related to the failure of the property owner to pay the benefit assessment provided
for in the Financing Agreement. The Green Bank shall disclose to the property owner the effective
interest rate on the benefit assessment, including fees charged by the Green Bank to administer the

V082515 -3



(d)

commercial sustainable energy program, and the risks associated with variable interest rate
financing, if applicable. The Green Bank shall notify the property owner that such owner may
rescind any Financing Agreement entered into not later than three business days after such
Financing Agreement is executed by the property owner and delivered to the Green Bank. The
Financing Agreement shall provide for the consent of existing mortgage holders for the Benefit
Assessment Lien to be continued, recorded and released by the Municipality, as requited by the
Act and described in Section 3(c) herein.

Determination of Estimated and Final Benefit Assessmenis and Paviments.

(1)  Upon execution of the Financing Agreement, the Green Bank shall determine the
total benefit assessment amount, including fees charged by the Green Bank to administer the
commercial sustainable energy program, and shall set a fixed or variable rate of interest for the
repayment of the benefit assessment amount. Such interest rate, as may be supplemented with
state or lederal funding as may become available, shall be sufficient to pay the financing and
administrative costs of the commercial sustainable energy program, including delinguencies.
The Green Bank shall provide written notice of the total benefit assessment amount and interest
rate to the Municipality.

(2)  Itis anticipated that the Green Bank will decide that the benefit assessment shall
be payable in two equal payments respectively payable on July 1 and January 1 of each year so
that they are due at the same time as the installments of the Municipality’s real properly taxes. If
the Municipality changes its practices concerning the billing of annual real property taxes as to
the number of installments and their due dates, the Green Bank will change its practices to the
extent possible to correspond with the Municipality’s practices.

Section 3 - Obligations of the Municipality.

@

(b)

Levy of Benefit Assessment. Upon receiving written notice from the Green Bank of the benelil
assessment as provided in Section 2(d)(1) herein, the Municipality shall promptly levy the benefit
assessment against the qualifying commercial real propeirty to be benefited by the energy
improvements financed by the Green Bank and described in the Financing Agreement, and shall
place a lien on the qualifying commercial real property to secure payment of the benefit assessment
in the form of the attached Exhibit A (“Benefit Assessment Lien”). The Benefit Assessment Lien
will have two attachments: (1) the legal description of the benefited property and (2) the Financing
Agreement payment schedule provided by the Green Bank. As provided in the Act, the benefit
assessments levied pursuant to this Agreement and the interest, fees and any penalties thereon shall
constitute a lien against the qualifying commercial real property on which they are made until they
are paid. The Green Bank will reimburse the Municipality the cost charged by the Town Clerk for
recording the Benefit Assessment Lien. Such Benefit Assessment Lien shall be levied and
collected in the same manner as the property taxes of the Municipality on real property, including,
in the event of default or delinquency, with respect to any penalties, fees and remedies and lien
priorities as provided by the Act.

Continuation, Recording and Release of Lien. As provided in the Act, each Bencefit Assessment
Lien shall be continued, recorded and released in the manner provided for properly tax liens,
subject to the consent of existing mortgage holders, and shall take precedence over all other liens
or encumbrances except a lien for taxes of the Municipality on real propetty, which lien for taxes
shall have priority over such Benefit Assessment Lien. The Green Bank shall provide to the

V082515 -4




(c)

(d)

(e)

Municipality written notice of the consent of existing mortgage holders for the lien to be continued,
recorded and released by the Municipality.

Assisnment of Benefit Assessment Lien.

(1) Upon the written request of the Green Bank, the Municipality shall assign, in the
form of the attached Exhibit B, to the Green Bank any and all Benefit Assessment Liens filed by
the Municipality’s tax collector, as provided in this Agreement. The Green Bank may sell or assign,
for consideration, any and all Benefit Assessment Liens received from the Municipality. The
assignee or assignees of such Benefit Assessment Liens shall have and possess the same powers
and rights at law or in equity as the Green Bank and the Municipality and its tax collector would
have had if the Benefit Asscssment Lien had not been assigned with regard to the precedence and
priority of such lien, the accrual of interest and the fees and expenses of collection. The assignee
shall have the same rights to enforce such Benefit Assessment Liens as any private party holding
a lien on real property, including, but not limited to, foreclosure and a suit on the debt. Costs and
reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the assignee as a result of any foreclosure action or other
legal proceeding brought pursvant to the assignment and directly related to the proceeding shall
be taxed in any such proceeding against each person having tifle to any property subject to the
proceedings. Such costs and fees may be collected by the assignee at any time after demand for
payment has been made by the assignee.

(2) The Municipality hereby acknowledges that the Green Bank may sell or assign any
and all Benefit Assessment Liens received from the Municipality under Section 3(c) of this
Agreement to a trustee for the benefit of the holders of the Green Bank’s bonds, notes or other
obligations issued to finance the costs of the commercial sustainable energy program, and that the
holders of the Green Bank’s bonds, notes or other obligations will rely on the Municipality to levy,
collect and remit the benefit assessments to the Green Bank. Therefore, the Municipality
unconditionally agrees that in the event the Municipality does not discharge its duties under this
Agreement, the trustee shall have the right to enforce the Municipality’s obligations under this
Agreement by instilution of legal action against the Municipality.

Amendment of the Benefit Assessment Lien. Pursuant to the Financing Agreement, the final
amount of the benefit assessment may be adjusted after the levy of the Benefit Assessment Lien.
Such an adjustment would likely be the result of a change in the energy improvement service
contract amount during the construction period, a change in the amount of capitalized interest, or
an amendment to the Financing Agreement. In the event that the final benefit assessment amount
needs to be adjusted at the completion of the project, or any other time, the Green Bank will inform
the Municipality of such change, provide the Municipality with an updated payment schedule and
new lien amount, and the Municipality shall amend the Benefit Assessment Lien to reflect such
adjustment. The Green Bank will reimburse the Municipality the cost charged by the Town Clerk
for amending the Benefit Assessment Lien.

Billing and Collection; Pavment to the Green Bank.

(1)  The Municipality shall bill the benefit assessments in the same manner and at the
same time as it bills its real property taxes. The benefit assessment payments shall be a separate
clearly defined line item or separate bill and shall be due on the same dates as the Municipality’s
real property taxes. The amount of the benefit assessment will be recorded on the Municipality’s
tax rolls in the same manner as any other benefit assessment, such that the public will have access

V082515 -5-



()

(£)

to its existence and payment status. The penalties and interest on delinquent benefit assessments
shall be charged in the same manner and rate as the Municipality charges for delinquent real
properly taxes.

(2) Payments of the benefit assessments collected by the Municipality shall be
segregated from all other funds of the Municipality and deposited in a scparate account for the
benefit of the Green Bank and identifying the Green Bank as the beneficial owner. The
Municipality disclaims any ownership intcrest or other interests in such account or the amount
collected.

(3)  The Municipality shall pay all amounts collected with respect to the benefil
assessments within any calendar month to the Green Bank or its assignee no later than thirty days
after the month that the amounts are collected. The Municipality will provide collection reports
to the Green Bank, and the Green Bank, at its own expense, shall have the right to audit the
records relating to the benefit assessments upon reasonable notice at reasonable times. The
Green Bank and Municipality agree to provide each other with such reasonable information as
they may request and the Green Bank and the Muaicipality agree to provide such information in
a computer format satisfactory to the other.

Collection of Delinquent Payinents.

(1) In the event that any benefited property owner fails to inake a benefit assessment
payment pursuant to the payment schedule of the Benefit Assessment Licn in any property tax
billing cycle, the Municipality shall provide written notice to the Green Bank of such delinquency
in a reasonably timely manner. After providing such notice to the Green Bank, the Municipality
has no obligation to collect delinquent benefit assessment payments unless it enters into a separate
agreement with the Green Bank described in the following subsection (2).

(2)  If the Green Bank makes a written request to the Municipality for its assistance in
the collection of delinquent benefit assessments and related charges, the Municipality, in its sole
discretion, and the Green Bank may enter into a separate agreement for those services, which
agreement shall provide for compensation to be paid to the Municipality for its collection services.
The agreement may provide for the Municipality to pursue the collection of any delinquent benefit
assessments with the same diligence it employs in the collection of the Municipality’s real property
taxes, including the commencement of foreclosure proceedings to the extent provided by the then-
current statutes of the State of Connecticut, and to take such actions that are required to preserve
the Benefit Assessment Lien securing the delinquent benefit assessments. The agreement may
also provide that the Green Bank shall have the right to take over the enforcement of any delinquent
benefit assessments upon written notice to the Municipality, and thereupon the Municipality will
have no further responsibility to coliect such amount.

(3)  The Municipality will provide written notice to the Gieen Bank of any sale or
assignment of its real property taxes or any institulion of a judicial foreclosure or other proceeding
against any real property for delinquent real property taxes if such real property is subject to a lien
securing a delinguent benefit assessment, Similarly, the Green Bank shall provide written notice
to the Municipality of the institution of a judicial foreclosure or other proceeding against any
qualified commercial real property for a delinquent benefit assessment.

Promotion of Program: Assistance for Green Bank Financing; Payment to Municipality.

V082515 _6-




(1)  The Municipality shall use good faith efforts to assist the Green Bank in local
marketing efforts and outreach o the local business communily to encourage participation in the
commercial sustainable energy program, such as including commercial sustainable energy
program information on the Municipality’s website, distributing an informational letter from
chief elected official to local businesses regarding the program, and conducting one or more
business roundtable event(s).

(2)  The Municipality shall use good faith efforts to assist in gathering and providing
information for the Green Bank to offer, sell and issue its bonds, notes or other obligations to
provide funds for the commercial sustainable energy program.

(3)  The Green Bank agrees to pay the Municipality annually a fee of $500 (the
"Annual Fee") for its services hereunder. In the event such payment is not sufficient to cover the
Municipality's out of pocket costs and expenses in discharging its duties hereunder, the Green
Bank shall reimburse the Municipality for its actual reasonable costs and expenses associated
with the collection and enforcement of the benefit assessments in excess of the Annual Fee.
Such costs and expenses include reasonable costs incurred by the Municipality in conjunction
with any and all proceedings to collect and enforce the benefit assessments and delinquent
benefit assessments, including foreclosure proceedings.

Seetion 4 - Indemnification.

The Green Bank agrees that it will protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Municipality
and its officers, agents and employees to the extent of available proceeds derived from the benefit
assessments from and against all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, judgments, losses and
expensces, including reasonable attorney’s fees, arising out of or in connection with the actions of the Green
Bank’s officers, employees and agents under this Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of
this Agrecment.

Section 5 - Term,

The term of this Agreement shall conuimence upon the date first written above. This Agreement
shall be in full force and cffect until all of the benefit assessments have been paid in full or deemed no
Ionger outstanding, The Municipality may opt-out of continuvation in the program at any time on sixty
(60) days advance natice to the Green Bank, provided that the provisions of this Agreement shall
continue with regard to benefit assessments assessed prior (o such termination date until those benefit
assessments have been paid in full or are no longer outstanding.

Section 6 - Default,

Ilach party shall give the other party writien notice of any breach of any covenant or agreement
under this Agreement and shall allow the defaulting party 30 days from the date of its receipt of such
notice within which to cure any such default or, if it cannot be cured within the 30 days, to commence and
thereafter diligently pursue to completion, using good faith efforts to effect such cure and to thereafier
notify the other party of the actual cure of any such default. The parties shall have all other rights and
remedies provided by law, including, but not limited to, specific performance, provided however, in no
event shall either party have the right to terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of the Term,
except as provided in accordance with Section 7(c) of this Agreement.

V082515 7.




Section 7 - Miscellaneous Provisions.

()

(b)

(©)

(d

()

()

Assignment or Transfer. Except as provided in Section 3(c) hereof, a party may not assign or
transfer its rights or obligations under this Agreement to another unit of local government, political
subdivision or agency of the State of Connecticut or to a private party or entity without the prior
written consent of the other party and, if required, the prior approval of the holders of the Green
Bank’s bonds, notes or other obligations. Ifapproval of the assignment by the holders of the Green
Bank’s bonds, notes or other obligations is required, such approval shall be obtained in accordance
with the indenture or other documents entered into by the Green Bank in connection with the
bonds, notes or other obligations.

Amendment and Termination. After the Green Bank sells and issues its bonds, notes or other
obligations to finance the costs of the commercial sustainable energy program, this Agreement
may not be amended or terminated by the parties without the prior approval of the holders of the
Green Bank’s bonds, notes or other obligations, which approval shall be obtained in accordance
with the indenture or other documents entered into by the Green Bank in connection with the
bonds, notes or other obligations.

Severability. If any clause, provision or section of this Agreement is held to be illegal or invalid
by any court, the invalidity of the clause, provision or section will not affect any of the remaining
clauses, provisions or sections, and this Agreement will be construed and enforced as if the illegal
or invalid clause, provision or section has not been contained in it.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same
instrument.

Notices. All notices, requests, consents and other communications shall be in writing and shall be
delivered, mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties,
as follows:

If to the Municipality:

Town of Colchester

127 Norwich Ave
Colchester, C1 06415
Aftention: First Selectman

If to the Green Bank:

Connecticut Green Bank

845 Brook Street

Rocky Hill, Connecticut 06067
Altention: President

Amendment and Waivers. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, any amendment to or
waiver of any provision of this Agreement must be in writing and mutually agreed to by the
Green Bank and the Municipality.

V082515 -8-



(h)  Applicable Law and Venue. This Agreement and its provisions shall be governed by and constirued
in accordance with the laws of the State of Connecticut. In any action, in equity or law, wilh
respect to the enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement, venue shall be in the State of
Connecticut,

6y Entire Agreement. This instrument constiluies the entire agreement belween the parties and
supersedes all previous discussions, understandings and agreements between the parties relating
to the subject matter of this Agreement.

) Headings. The headings in this Agreement are solely for convenience, do not constitute a part of
this Agreement and do not affect its meaning or construction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Municipality and the Green Bank have each caused this
Agrecment to be executed and delivered as of the date indicated above:

(SEAL)
ATTEST:
TOWN OF COLCHESTER

By:

Mary Bylone, First Selectman

CONNECTICUT GREEN BANK

By:

Bryan T. Garcia, President

V082515 -9



EXHIBIT A

CERTIFICATE OF LEVY AND LIEN OF BENEFIT ASSESSMENT

The undersigned Tax Collector of the TOWN OF Colchester Connecticut (“Municipality”), with an office at 127
Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut, for and on behalf of the Connecticut Green Bank (the “Green Bank”), formerly
known as the Clean Energy Finance and Investinent Authority, with an officc at 845 Brook Street, Rocky Hill, Connecticut
060067, pursuant to the Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy Program established under Connecticut General
Statutes Secticn 16a-40g, as amended (the “Act”), and the Municipal Agreement between the Municipality and Green
Barnk dated .20 » HEREBY LEVIES A BENEFIT ASSESSMENT AGAINST AND LIEN UPON
certain real property commonly referred to as and described more particularly in the attached
Exhibit A (the “Property”), situated in the Municipality and owned on the date hereof in whole or in part by
(the “Propeity Owner”), said levy and lien shall secure the repayment of financing for cocrgy
improvements made or to be made to the Property pursuant to that certain Financing Agreement between Property Qwner
and Green Bank dated , 2015, as may be amended (the *Financing Agreement”). The amount and
repayment of said levy and lien, as determined by Green Bank and provided to Municipality, are as follows: an installment
payment plan is in effect for payment of the benefit assessment, and is based on the principal amount of the benefit
assessment of § , with interest thereon at a fixed rate equal to % per annum, with
equal installments of principal and interest due and payable pursuant to the Financing Agreement, all as set forth in the
attached Exhibit B. In the event that any such installment shall remain unpaid for thirty days after the same shall become
due and payable, interest and other charges shall be charged upon the unpaid installment(s) at the rate of 18% per annum,
as provided by the Act and by law. At such time as the principal and interest payments of the benefit assessment have
been satisfied and paid in full, a release of this Certificate shall be filed in the Land Records of the Municipality evidencing
such release,

This Certificate constitutes a certificate of lien and is filed pursuant to the provisions of the Act to evidence a lien
for the benefit assessment levied upon the Property for the special benefits conferred upon said Property by the renovation
or retrofitting for cnergy improvements related thereto. Pursuant to the Act, this lien shall take precedence over all other
liens or encumbrances except a lien for taxes of the Municipality on real property, which lien for taxes shall have priority
over this lien. For the purposes of this lien, the Green Bank and any fulure successors, assigns or heirs of such lien shall
be bound by and irrevocably subordinated to any environmental land use restriction recorded on the land records of the
Municipality pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat.§ 22a-1330 after this lien is filed on the land records of the Municipality.

The portion of this Certificate which constitutes a levy of benefit assessment and notice of installment payment of
benefit assessments is filed pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Connecticut General Statutes, as amended.

By order of the Tax Collector of the Town of COLCHESTER.

Dated at , Connecticut this day of ,20

Tax Collector

Received for Record; ;20 at AM./P.M,

Recorded in the Land Records at Volume , Page

City/Town Clerk

V082515



EXHIBIT B

ASSIGNMENT OF BENEFIT ASSESSMENT LIEN

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that the TOWN OF COLCIIESTER, a Connecticut municipal
corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Assignor™), acting herein by , its Tax Collector, duly authorized
pursbant to a Municipal Agreement dated . 20 , between the Assignor and ihe Connecticud Green
Bank (hereinafler referred to as “Assignee”), in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration paid
to Assignor by the Assignee, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby quit-claims, grants, bargains, sells,
conveys, assigns, transfers and sets over unto Assignee, without warranty covenants and without recourse, all of its right,
title and interest in and to that certain benefit assessment lien and the debts secured thereby together with such interest,

fees, and expenses of collection as may be provided by law, filed by the Tax Collector on the
__Land Records, on property owned on the date hereof in whole or in part by
and as described on Exhibit A and also commonly referred to as , attached hereto and made a part

hereof (the “Lien™), to have and to hold the same unto the said Assignee, its successor and assigns forever.

This Assignment is made, given and executed pursuant to the authority granted to Assignor as a municipality by
Connecticut General Statutes Section 16a-40g, as amended.

By exccution of this Assignment, the Assignor assigns to Assignee, and the Assignee assumes, all of the rights at law or
in equity, obligations powers and duties as the Assignor and the Assignor’s Tax Collector would have with respect to the
Lien, if the Lien had not been assigned with regard to precedence and priority of such lien, the accrual of interest, charges,
fees and expenses of collection, pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes Section 16a-40g, as amended.

This Assignment by the Assignor is absolute and ircevocable and the City/Town shall retain no interest, reversionary or
otherwise, in the Lien.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, we have hereunto set cur hands and seal this of .20

Assignor

By _
Tax Collector

STATE QF CONNECTICUT) S8.:
)
COUNTY OF )
On this the day of .20, before me , the undersigned officer, personally

appeared , Tax Collector, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed
to the within instrument and acknowledged that he/she executed the same for the purposes therein contained and that he/she
acknowledged the same to be his/her free act and deed, before me, in his/her capacity as said Tax Collector.

Commissioner of the Superior Court

V082515



TOWN OF COLCHESTER
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT

TO: Mary Bylone, First Selectman
Board of Selectmen
FROM: Matthew R. Bordeaux, Planning Director ﬂ[zﬁ
DATE: February 26, 2021
RE: Lebanon Avenue Streetscape Improvements — Design Consultant Services
Introduction

The Town of Colchester has been informed that its pre-application for the above noted project
under the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation’s 2020 Local Transportation
Capital Improvement Program (LOTCIP) is eligible for funding. The pedestrian improvements
along Lebanon Avenue in the area between the intersection of Windham Avenue and the
frontage of the Four Seasons of Colchester apartments (343 Lebanon Ave) are projected to cost
approximately $640,000. The Town is responsible for engineering costs associated with all
phases of design (application, commitment to fund, design, utilities, permitting, ROW, final
design submissions). The Town has been advised to provide a full application in conformance
with CTDOT and COG guidance.

The Town’s Departments of Planning and Zoning and Public Works have reviewed the scope of
work and fees associated with the performance of design consulting services by Anchor, a
Barton & Loguidice Company (formerly known as Anchor Engineering Services, Inc.) and are
satisfied with the proposal. The design services for the project will be funded by the Town Aid
Road Grants (TAR) program administered by the Public Works Department and are anticipated
to cost $18,600.

The decision to work with Anchor is the result of their experience with the Town, having
recently completed the Halls Hill Road LOTCIP project, and their familiarity with the program
requirements. Based on the program schedule and sequence of plan and application submittals,
timing is significant due to the constraints placed on program applicants by the State,

Recommendation

Therefore, I am recommending the First Selectman waive the competitive bid requirements of
the Town of Colchester Purchasing Policy. Further, I request the Board of Selectmen authorize
the First Selectman to sign the agreement to authorize Barton & Loguidice, LLC to proceed with
the services described in the letter dated February 22, 2021, attached.



Proposed Motion to waive competitive bid requirements:

Move to approve a Waiver of Request for Proposal/Competitive Bid Process due to the
schedule and sequence of submittals associated with the LOTCIP program requirements.

Proposed Motion to award contract:

Move to award the coniract for the performance of design services related fo the Lebanon
Avenue Streetscape Improvement Project to Anchor, a Barton & Loguidice Company and
authorize the First Selectman to sign all necessary docunients related to the performance of
design services as outlined in the letter dated February 22, 2021,

MRB

RAGrants\LOTCIP\2020\Anchor Engineering30S Authorization to FS.docx

Attach.



ANCHOR

o Barton&Loguldice company

February 22, 2021

Mr, Matthew Bordeaux
Planning Ditector
Town of Colchester
127 Norwich Avenue
Colchester, CT 06415

Re:  Lebanon Avenue Streetscape Improvements Phase 3 - Design Consultant Services
Dear Mr, Bordeaux:

Thank you for considering us to provide the design services for Phase 3 of the Lebanon Avenue
Streetscape Improvements, We are pleased to provide the Town of Colchester with the following scope
of work and fees to perform design consulting services in support of this project;

o Prepare preliminary and final design plans along with bid documents suitable for the
conscruction of sidewalks, crosswalks and streetscape amenities along Lebanon Ave,, this work
includes:

Sidewalks
o As-needed improvements of the existing sidewalk in the area between the Aitline
‘T'rail Spur and the entrance to Dublin Village,
o Approximately 1,300 linear feet of new 5 wide sidewalk on the south side of Lebanon
Ave, to the entrance of Sunset Vista Condominiums.
o New sidewalk on the north side of the road from the Highland Farms Drive
intersection, east to the existing sidewalk in front of the Four Seasons Apartments.

Crosswalks
o0 Install two crosswalks, one across Blm Street and one across Lebanon Ave to the
northeast corner of the Highland Farms Drive intersection.

Streetscape Amenities

o Install two pedestrian plazas, one on the west side of the Elm Street intersection and
one on the east side of the intersection of Highland Farms Drive. It is anticipated
that these plazas will be finished with stamped concrete and include a bench and
landscaping,

o A three-sided bus terminal will be included at the Highland Farms Drive
intersection,

0 An existing concrete retaining wall located in the vicinity of 240 and 252 Lebanon
Avenue will be reconstructed and the sidewalk widened,

o New period-appropriate, pedestrian-scale solar-powered street lights will be
included. These lights shall match the current streetscape lighting within the
Historic District located at the westetly extent of Lebanon Avenue.

The experience to

listen

The power to
41 Sequin Drive, Glastonbury, CT 06033 = Office: (860) 633-8770 » Fax: 860.633.5971 = Bandlct.com SOlve ®



Mr, Matthew Bordeaux
February 22, 2021

Page 2

Weunderstand the Town has been working closely with CTDOT's District IT office and we're in receipt
of Mr. Andrew Morrill's comment letter dated June 12, 2017, We anticipate addressing these staff
comments and continuing to work closely with Town staff to secure CTDOT permits and SECCOG
approvals for this exciting project,

Our project fees are based upon working closely with T'own staff to streamline the design, permitting and
bidding phases so that all services can be completed within twelve (12) months of contract signing. Our
fees for this work are as follows;

Preliminary Design & Cost Estimate $ 3,850
Final Design & Cost Estimate $11,250
Coordination Megs. & Bidding Assistance $ 3,500
Total Fees $18,600

Construction administration and inspection services will be billed hourly and will not exceed 15% of the
final construction costs.

If you have any questions regarding the above or the enclosed information, please don't hesitate to contact
me at (860) 633-8770.

Sincerely,

BARTON & LOGUIDICE, LLC

Kevin R, Grindle, ASLA, PLA Mark M Zessin, P.E.
Senior Managing Landscape Architect Senior Vice President

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED

Barton & Loguidice, LLC is hereby authotized by The Town of Colchester CT (“Owner”) to
proceed with the services described herein in accordance with the attached Terms and Conditions,

Signature Date
Town of Colchester



STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
for
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
provided by
BARTON & LOGUIDICE, LLC (“ENGINEER™)

The OWNER and the ENGINEER, for themsclves, their successors and
assigns, have mutually agreed and do agree with cach other as follows:

1.0 Basic Agreement

Engineer shali provide, or cause Lo be provided, the services set forth in te
proposal to which these terms and conditions are attached (PROPOSAL),
and Qwner shall pay Engineer for such Services as set forth in PROPOSAL,
The PROPOSAL, in conjunction with these terms and conditions, is referred
to herein as “Agreement”.

20 Payment Procedures

Engineer will prepare a2 monthly invoice in accordance with Engineer’s
standard inveicing praciices and submil the invoice to Owner. Invoices are
due and payable wilhin 3¢ days of the date of the invoice, If Owner fails to
make any payment due Engineer for services and expenses within 30 days
after the date of Engineer’s invoice, the amounts due Engineer will be
increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum rate of interest
permifted by law, if less) from said thirticth day. In addition, Enginecr
may, without liability, after giving seven days written notice to Owner,
suspend services under this Agreement unlil Engineer has been paid in full
all amounts due for services, expenses, and other related charges.

3.0 Additional Sexrvices

H mutally agreed by Owner and Engineer, or if required because of
changes in the Praject, Fngineer shall furnish services in addition 1o those
set forth in the PROPOSAL if requested by the Gwner. Owner shali pay
Engineer for such additional services as follows: (1) as mutually agreed by
Owner and Engineer, or (2} an amount equal to the cumulative hours
charged to the Project by each clags of Engincer’s employees times standard
hourly rates for cach applicable billing class; plus reimbursable expenses and
Engineer’s consultants’ charges, if any. :

4.0 Termination

If Engineer’s services related to the preject are terminated for any reason,
Engineer shall be compensated for time plus reasonable expenscs assaciated
with demobilizing personnel and equipment, and, if requested in writing by
the OWNER, for completion of tasks whose value would cifierwise be lfost,
10 prepare notes as to the slatus of conpleted and uncompleted tasks, and to
assemble Project materials in orderly files.

5.0  Controlling Law
This Agreement is to be governed by the Jaw of the state in which the
Praject is located.

6.0  Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

Owner and Engineer each is hereby bound and the partners, successors,
executors, administrators, and legal representatives of Owner and Engineer
{and 1o the extent permiited herein the assigns of Owner and Engineer} are
hereby bound to the other party to tiis Agreement and to the partvers,
successors, executors, administrators, and legal represemtalives (and said
assigns) of such other parly, in vespect of all covenants, agreements, and
obligations of this Agreement. Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign,
sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest {including, but without
limitations, maoneys that are due or may become due) in this Agreement
without the written consent of the other, except to the extent that any
assigiuent, subletting, or transfer is mandated or resiricted by law, Unless
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no
assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or
responsibility under this Agreement,

7.0  General Considerations

A. The standard of care for all professional enpineering and related
services performed or furnished by Engineer under this Agreement will ke
the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession
practicing under simifar circumstances at the same time and in the same
locality, BEngineer makes no warranties, express or jeplied, vader this
Agreement or otherwise, in connection willi Engineer's scrvices. Engineer
and its counsuliants may use or rely upon the design services of others,
including, but not Jimited to, contractors, manuacturers, and suppliers.

B, Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, or have control over
aiy contractor’s work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or
responsibility for (he means, metheds, techniques, sequences, or procedures
of constiaciion selected or used by any contractar, for safety precautions and
programs ncident to a contractor’s work progress, nor for any faituce of any
contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to contractor’s
work.

C. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor
assunes responsibility for any contractor’s failure to furnish and perform its
work izt accordance with the contract between Owner and such contractor,

D, Engineer shall not be responsible for the acls or omissions of any
Contractor, Subcontractor, or Supphier, or of any of their ageuts or
employees or of any other persons {(except Engineer’s own agents,
employees, and Consultants) at the Site or otherwise furnishing or
performing any Work; or for any decisior: made regarding the Contract
Documenis, or any application, interpretation, or clarification, of the
Coniract Documents, other than those made by Engineer.

E. All design documents prepared or furnished by Engineer are
instruments of service, and Engineer retains an ownership and property
interest {including the copyright and the riglt of reuse) in such documents,
whether or not the Project is compleled.

F. To the fullest estent permilied by law, Owner and Engineer (1) waive
against each other, and the other’s employees, officers, divectors, agents,
insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for or entitlemeni to
special, incidenlal, indirect, or conmsequential damages arising out of,
resulting from, or in any way related to the Project, and (2) agree that
Engineer’s tota! liability to Owner under this Agreemment shall be limiled to
$50,000 or the tofal amount of compensation received by Engineer pursuant
to the PROPOSAL, whichever is greater.

G. The parties acknowledge that Engineer's scope of services doas not
inclede any services related to a Hazardous Environmesmtal Condition {the
presence of asbestos, PCBs, petroleum, hazardous substances or waste, and
radioactive materials) except as may be specifically defived in the Scope of
Services. If Engineer or any other party encounters a Hazardous
Environmental Condition, Engineer may, at its option and without liability
for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on
the portion of the Project affected thercby until Owner: (i) retains
appropriate specialist consultants or contractors to identify and, as
appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove the Hazardous Envirommental
Condition; and (i) warrants that the Site is in full compliance with
applicable Laws and Regulations.

H. The services to be provided by Barton & Loguidice under this
Agreement DO NOT INCLUDE advice or recommendations with respect to
the issuance, siructure, timing, terms or any other aspect of municipal
securities, municipal derivatives, guaranteed investment conwacts or
investment  strategies. Any opimons, advice, information or
recommendations provided by Barton & Loguidice are understood by the
patties lo this Agreement to be stictly empineering opinions, advice,
information or recommendations. Barton & Loguidice is not a “municipal
advisor” as defined by 15 U.8.C. 780-4 or the related rules of the Securities
and Exchange Conunission. The other parties to this Agreement shonld
determine independently whether they require the services of 2 municipal
advisor.

8.0 DBispute Resolution

Owner and Engineer ageee to negotiate all disputes between them in good
faith for a period of 30 days frem the date of notice by either pacty of the
existence of the dispute, If the pacties fail to resolve a dispute through
negotiation then Owner and Engineer agree that they shall first submit any
and all unsettled claims, counterclaims, disputes, and other matters in
question between them arising out of or relating to this Agreemient or the
breach thereof {“Disputes™) 1o mediation by a mutvally acceptable mediator.
Owner and Engivcer agree to participate in the mediation process in good
faith and to share the cost of the mediation equally. The process shall be
conducted on a confidential basis, and shall be completed within 120 days.
If such mediation is unsuccessful in resolving a Dispute, then (1) the parties
may matually agree 1o a dispute resclution of their choice, or (2) either party
may seek to fiave fhe Dispute resobved by a court of competent jurisdiction,

9.0 Accroal of Claims

All causes of action between the pariics to this Agreement including those
pertaining to acts, failures to act, failures to perform in accordance with the
obligations of the Agreement or failures to perfonn in 2ecordance with (he
standard of care shall be deemed to have accrucd and the applicable statutes
of limitations shall commence to run not later than either the date of
Substantial Completion for acts, faflures to act or failures to perform
occursing prior to Substantial Completion, or the date of issuance of the
Notice of Acceptability of Work for acts, failures to act or failmes to
perform oceurring after Substantial Completion.

10.0 Total Agreement

This Agreement constitutes the eatire agreement between QOwner and
Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. In the
event of a conflict wilh contractual provisions in a Purchase Order
authorization related to this Agreement, the provislons of this Agreement
shall controb. This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented,
moditied, or canceled by a duly executed written instrument.




American Legion Post 54
VFW Post 6990

Mary Bylone

Town Of Colchester
First Selectman

Dear First Selectman Bylone,

The Parade Committee meets every March to begin a 4 month planning process necessary for
the Colchester Memorial Day Parade. Last year the decision was made that we would not
conduct the parade due to the uncertainty of events surrounding COVID. Today our town and
state are moving in a positive direction regarding COVID but are still limited by the restrictions
in place to discourage the spread of COVID.

We feel that it is in the best interest of the town to cancel the 2021 Colchester Memorial Day
parade due to the uncertainty during the planning time and well-being of our at risk po

We are very much looking forward to redirecting our attention toward a special emphasis on
observing the 20th Anniversary of September | Ith and Veterans Day in November.

Thank you for your time and as always, feel free to contact us with any questions or comments
you might have.

Sincerely, Dyaty dsnedby Duicibendus 5
Daniel Henderson, e=Amy,

. Dk o=l
Daniel Henderson =g aminseiossiecon
Date: 20310232 153653 050’

Daniel Henderson Chtigtopher Emmerson
Commander Commander
American Legion Post 54 VFW Post 6990



